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Jonas Thomas House 
Bartonsville 
Private 

c. 1873 

In 1858, the community of Bartonsville did not exist as evidenced 
by the Bond Map of Frederick County. But by 1873, Bartonsville 
numbered twenty houses, a "temple", a store, and "colored" school. 
Two churches were later built for the corrmunity in the 1880's. 
The appearance of the community during this time period certainly 
indicated a community built by freed slaves immediately following 
the Civil War. It is not known however, why this particular area 
was settled as a Black community. 

The Jonas Thomas House appears to have been built by 1873 and is 
indicated as the home of J. Bowens on the Titus Atlas. A title 
search of the property shows that Bowens purchased six and 
one-fourth acres from Henry Houck on June 19, 1865. He owned the 
house until his death in 1876 at which time his heirs sold the 
property to Jonas Thomas for $500.00. 

The interior of the main block is divided into two square rooms 
separated in the center by a partition. Located in the center of 
this partition is a fireplace on each side. Each fireplace is 
decorated by a plain wood mantel with plain frieze, simple mantel 
shelf with double half round molding surrounding the opening and 
frieze. Plain baseboard and molding frame the door openings in 
the main block of the building. A plain open string stair rises 
to the second floor along the west wall. 

The building is significant to Bartonsville as one of the oldest 
structures in the community and though it is in poor condition is 
an important part of the history of the post-Civil War Black 
Community of Bartonsville. 
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II DESCRIPTION 

_EXCELLENT 
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_FAlft 

CONDITION 

_DETERIORATED 
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_UNEXPOSED 
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_UNALTERED 

_ALTERED 

CHECK ONE 

_ORIGINAL SITE 

_MOVED DATE. __ _ 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Jonas Thomas House is a two story log hip roofed ell shaped residence 
which faces south from the north side of Bartonsville in the Black commu­
nity of Bartonsville. Initially the house appears to have little 
significance, but upon closer inspection and through research, the build­
ing can be considered an important part of Bartonsville. 

The main entrance, a replaced two horizontal panel door with top light is 
located in the second bay. The building is three bays wide. 

Occupying the remaining two bays on both levels are replaced Victorian 
2/2 windows. The original windows, double hung 6/6 sash, were installed 
in the rear and added in 1935. 

The main block is one room and one bay deep. One double hung 6/6 window 
is centered in the second level on the north and south walls of the main 
block. The main block is constructed of horizontal logs covered with 
asbestos siding. 

A two story frame addition added in 1935 extends to the rear of the main 
block. The addition is one bay wide and one bay deep with double hung 
6/6 windows occupying each bay on each level. A two story open porch is 
attached to the addition on the east side. One door on each level enters 
into the rear addition of the house. 

The entire building is constructed on a low random stone foundation and 
is covered by a replaced asphalt hipped roof with exposed rafters. A 
single brick chimney rises from the center of the building. A plain 
dormer with four pane window extends on the south side of the roof. A 
single brick exterior chimney rises from the north end of the house. 

A corncrib is located on the premises in poor condition. 

The interior of the main block is divided into two square rooms separated 
in the center by a partition. Located in the center of this partition is 
a fireplace on each side. Each fireplace is decorated by a plain wood 
mantel with plain frieze, simple mantel shelf with double half round mold­
ing surrounding the opening and frieze. Plain baseboard and molding frame 
the door openings in the main block of the building. A plain open string 
stair rises to the second floor along the west wall. 

The rear addition accommodates a kitchen on each floor. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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_1600-1699 --ARCHITECTURE -EDUCATION _MILITARY _SOCIAUHUMANITARIAN 

_1700·1799 --ART -ENGINEERING _MUSIC _THEATER 
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_ 1900· -COMMUNICATIONS _INDUSTRY _POLITICS/GOVERNMENT _OTHER (SPECIFY) 

_INVENTION 

SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ ARCHITECT 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

In 1858, the community of Bartonsville did not exist as evidenced by the 
Bond Map of Frederick County. But by 1873, Bartonsville numbered twenty 
houses, a "temple", a store, and 11 colored 11 school. Two churches were 
later built for the corrmunity in the 1880's. The appearance of the 
community during this time period certainly indicated a community built 
by freed slaves irrmediately following the Civil War. It is not known 
however, why this particular area was settled as a Black corrmunity. 

The Jonas Thomas House appears to have been built by 1873 and is indicated 
as the home of J. Bowens on the Titus Atlas. A title search of the 
property shows that Bowens purchased six and one-fourth acres from Henry 
Houck on June 19, 1865. 1 He owned the house until his death in 1876 at 
which time his heirs sold the property to Jonas Thomas for $500.00.2 

Jonas Thomas, grandfather of the present owner of the house, is believed 
to be the builder of the house by the Bowie family, his heirs in the 
Bartonsville Comrnunity. 

The building is significant to Bartonsville as one of the oldest struc­
tures in the community and though it is in poor condition is an 
important part of the history of the post-Civil War Black Co111T1unity of 
Bartonsvi 11 e. 

Upon the death of Jonas Thomas the house was left to his heirs and stays 
in the Bowie family (Mary Ellen Thomas Bowie) today. 

1Frederick County Land Records, Liber JWLC 2; Folio 658. 
2Ibid., Liber TG 6; Folio 255. 
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STATE COUNTY 

STATE COUNTY 

mFORM PREPARED BY 
NAME I TITLE clh 
Cherilyn E. Widell, Coordinator 
ORGANIZATION DATE 

Frederick County Office of Historic Preservation 7 /18/80 
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE 

Winchester Hall, 12 E. Church St. 694-1063 
CITY OR TOWN STATE 

Frederick Maryl and 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
(301) 267-1438 
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